
Mason County PUD No. 1 
Regular Board Meeting 

June 25, 2024 
1:00 p.m. 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1)  Public Comment- Members of the public wishing to comment may request permission to do so during the 
Public Comment portion of the agenda. Comments shall be limited to no more than 5 minutes per speaker. There 
will be no action or discussion of public comment items, although the board may defer to PUD management for 
any necessary response. 

 

2) Call Regular Business Meeting to Order 
 

3) Public Comment 
 

4) Consent Agenda 
Minutes:    Regular Board Meeting June 11, 2024 
   
Disbursements:   Accounts Payable Wire     $     69,379.04      

        Check Nos  125075-125129  $ 1,153,048.56   
       125130 -125131   $      11,370.47 
     Payroll Wire     $      81,834.06 
                                                      

Grand Total      $ 1,315,632.13 
 

5) Business Agenda 
a. Ripplewood Change Order No. 4 
b. Award 2024 Hill Way Road Grading & Restoration to Hanson Excavation, LLC 
c. Award T3 Breaker Foundation Project to DJ’s Electrical  

 

6) Staff Reports 
a. General Manager 
b. District Treasurer 
c. Water Resource Manager 
d. Legal Counsel 

  

7) Correspondence  
8) Board Comments 
9) Other Business/Public Comment 

10) Executive Session may be held as authorized by the Open Public Meetings Act (RCW 42.30.110) 
11) Adjournment  

 
 
 
 
 

Join Zoom Meeting  
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/858
69053743  

Meeting ID: 858 6905 3743  
1 (253) 215-8782 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85869053743
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85869053743


 
 
 

2024 Calendar 
 
Jun 27   WPUDA Water Committee meeting quarterly, Olympia/Zoom 
Jun 27   WPAG Hybrid Meeting 
JULY 12  Employee Appreciation Potlatch State Park 
July 17-19  WPUDA Association meetings, location TBD 
July 25  WPAG Hybrid Meeting 
August 7  PPC Embassy Suites Portland Airport 
August 8  PPC Embassy Suites Portland Airport 
August 22  WPAG Virtual Meeting 
September 4  PPC Embassy Suites Portland Airport 
September 5  PPC Embassy Suites Portland Airport 
Sep 18-20  WPUDA Association meetings, location TBD 
Sept 25-27  WPUDA Water Workshop, location TBD  
Sept 25  WPAG Hybrid Meeting 
October 2  PPC Embassy Suites Portland Airport 
October 3  PPC Embassy Suites Portland Airport 
October 4  PUD 1 Customer Appreciation Event 
October 23-24 Energy Northwest Members Forum, Richland 
October 31  WPAG Meeting, Virtual 
November 6   PPC Town Hall Embassy Suites Portland Airport 
November 7   PPC Annual Meeting Embassy Suites Portland Airport 
Nov 13-15  WPUDA Association meetings, Olympia 
 
 



Mason County Public Utility District No. 1  
Board of Commissioners Regular Board Meeting   

June 11, 2024, Potlatch, Washington 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
 
Present:      Visitors:  None. 
Jack Janda, President              
Ron Gold, Vice President  
Mike Sheetz, Board Secretary  
Kristin Masteller, General Manager    
Katie Arnold, District Treasurer   
Brandy Milroy, Water Resource Manager  
Rob Johnson, Legal Counsel                 
                                 
CALL TO ORDER: Jack called the meeting to order at 1:00 p.m. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  None. 
 
APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA: 
Minutes:     Regular Board Meeting May 28, 2024 
 
Disbursements:   Accounts Payable Wire     $135,056.95      
       Check Nos 125025- 125074   $156,980.16      
    Payroll Wire     $  92,335.61       
                

Grand Total      $384,372.72 
 
Ron made a motion to approve the consent agenda as presented; Mike seconded the motion. It passed 
unanimously. 
 
Business Agenda: 
Approve Changes to Administrative Policy No. 1002- Electric Consumer Policy – Ron made a motion to 
approve Administrative Policy No. 1002 as presented; Mike seconded the motion. It passed 
unanimously. 
 
Award 2024 Vegetation Management Contract to Kemp West- Ron made a motion to award the 2024 
Vegetation Management contract to Kemp West in the amount of $188,182.40; Mike seconded the motion. It 
passed unanimously.  
 
Approve Line of Credit for Short Term Project Financing– Ron made a motion to authorize staff to move 
forward with a $5 million line of credit for short-term project financing with CoBank; Mike seconded the 
motion. It passed unanimously. 
 
Approve Resolution No. 2082- CoBank Membership–  
Ron made a motion to authorize Resolution No. 2082- CoBank Membership; Mike seconded the motion. 
It passed unanimously. 
 
 



Mason County Public Utility District No. 1  
Board of Commissioners Regular Board Meeting   

June 11, 2024, Potlatch, Washington 
 

 
Designate FEMA Applicant Agent for Disaster 4775-DR-WA–  
Ron made a motion to designate Katie Arnold as the primary FEMA Applicant Agent for Disaster 4775-
DR-WA and designate Kristin Masteller as the alternate Applicant Agent; Mike seconded the motion. It 
passed unanimously. 
 
Staff Reports –  
General Manager – Kristin reported that she attended the Public Power Council meetings in Portland 
last week. She is having lunch with Rep. Couture tomorrow and then will do a site visit at Vuecrest Water 
System to visit the project he sponsored through the capital budget. Seal Rock joint trench project is 
underway. Hood Canal Communications is pursuing BEAD funding to build out other areas of broadband 
and wants to coordinate pole replacements again. Kristin met with Pleasant Harbor leadership about the 
deposit agreement and gave them an initial power supply amount. The PUD is on hold until Pleasant 
Harbor executes the deposit agreement. 
 
District Treasurer – Katie reported that the State Auditor had their Risk Assessment interviews today. 
She will have meetings with Emergency Management tomorrow on FEMA funding. She has been working 
on grant management. 
 
Water Resource Manager – Brandy gave an update on the Vuecrest, Lake Arrowhead, Agate Beach and 
Shadowood projects. She said she is working on getting Consumer Confidence Reports out before the 
end of the month.   

Legal Counsel – None. 

Correspondence – None. 
 
Board Reports –  
Mike – Attended PPC online last week. 
Jack – Attended PPC Member’s Forum online. 
Ron – Attended PPC, WPAG, and Hood Canal Coordinating Council. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT – None. 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION – None. 
 
Adjournment: 1:44 p.m. 
 
 
              
Jack Janda, President Ron Gold, Vice President             Mike Sheetz, Secretary 



Page 106/17/2024 4:05:27 PM

Rev: 202303040906

Accounts Payable
Check Register

MASON COUNTY PUD NO 1

06/10/2024 To 06/17/2024
Bank Account:   4 - UMPQUA BANK - DISTRICT

Check /
Tran Date

Pmt
Type AmountVendor NameVendor Reference

FEDERAL TAX LIABILITY 33,648.59WIRE1049 06/17/2024 IRS WEST COAST BANK

STATE RETIREMENT - PLAN 2 20,657.06WIRE1050 06/17/2024 WASH 1 WA DEPT OF RETIREMENT SYS

DEFERRED COMPENSATION 11,472.50WIRE1051 06/17/2024 WASH 7 WA STATE TREAS-MS: PO-11

VEBA MEDICAL SAVINGS 3,600.89WIRE1052 06/17/2024 HRA HRA VEBA TRUST CONTRIBUTI

REFUND-DUCTILE IRON 0.00DD3872 06/14/2024 HDFOWL HD FOWLER COMPANY

MADRONA PARK WATER-SOFTENER REPLACEMENT 12,670.98CHK125075 06/10/2024 2M COMPANY 2M COMPANY INC

DUCTLESS HEATPUMP REBATE-GARY BELL 800.00CHK125076 06/10/2024 ALPINE DUCTLE ALPINE DUCTLESS HEATING

ELECTRIC TOOLS 1,690.17CHK125077 06/10/2024 ALTEC ALTEC INDUSTRIES INC

DUCTLESS HEATPUMP REBATE-PAT SKURA 800.00CHK125078 06/10/2024 AMERICOOL AMERICOOL HEATING & AIR CONDITI

AFTER HOURS ANSWERING SERVICE 1,721.76CHK125079 06/10/2024 CRC COOPERATIVE RESPONSE CENTER, INC

MANZANITA SUBSTATION SITE WORK 525,077.75CHK125080 06/10/2024 DJ'S ELECTRICA DJ'S ELECTRICAL INC

GAS & DIESEL 3,432.21CHK125081 06/10/2024 DON SMALL & S DON SMALL & SONS OIL DIST

MONTHLY JANITORIAL SERVICES 1,282.50CHK125082 06/10/2024 EXCELSIOR CLE EXCELSIOR CLEANING

(3)DIAMOND BLADES 723.99CHK125083 06/10/2024 FEI 1539 FERGUSON WATERWORKS #3011

VOIDMONTHLY WPAG EXPENSES 80.00VOIDCHK125084 06/10/2024 GDS ASSOCIATE GDS ASSOCIATES, INC

ALDERBROOK WATER-ROCK 576.09CHK125085 06/10/2024 GILLIARDI LOG GILLIARDI LOGGING AND CONSTRUCT

MONTHLY WEBSITE HOSTING 60.00CHK125086 06/10/2024 GOLDSTREET GOLDSTREET DESIGN AGENCY, INC.

CLEAN & INSPECT VARIOUS WATER SYSTEMS 7,052.50CHK125087 06/10/2024 H20 SOLUTIONS H20 SOLUTIONS, LLC

ELECTRIC INVENTORY PARTS-TRANSFORMER PAD 4,701.13CHK125088 06/10/2024 JENSEN PRECAS JENSEN PRECAST

SHOP TOOLS 513.41CHK125089 06/10/2024 L.G. L. G. ISAACSON CO. INC.

MONTHLY GARBAGE CHARGES 918.31CHK125090 06/10/2024 MASON CO GAR MASON COUNTY GARBAGE

SAFETY SERVICE-MAY 21, 2024 1,136.25CHK125091 06/10/2024 NWSS NORTHWEST SAFETY SERVICE LLC

QTRLY MAILING MACHINE & SCALE-LEASE FEES 413.79CHK125092 06/10/2024 PITENY BOWES PITNEY BOWES GLOBAL FINANCIAL SE

SHOP SUPPLIES 339.71CHK125093 06/10/2024 PLATT ELECTRI PLATT

MANZANITA SUBSTATION ENGINEERING & TEST 29,848.60CHK125094 06/10/2024 POWER ENGINE POWER ENGINEERS

RENT ON TWO MACHINES & ADDITIONAL IMAGES 908.21CHK125095 06/10/2024 RICOH USA RICOH USA, INC.

/pro/rpttemplate/acct/2.59.1/ap/AP_CHK_REGISTER.xml.rpt51217



Page 206/17/2024 4:05:27 PM

Rev: 202303040906

Accounts Payable
Check Register

MASON COUNTY PUD NO 1

06/10/2024 To 06/17/2024
Bank Account:   4 - UMPQUA BANK - DISTRICT

Check /
Tran Date

Pmt
Type AmountVendor NameVendor Reference

VARIOUS WATER SAMPLES 3,836.50CHK125096 06/10/2024 SPECTRA LAB SPECTRA LABORATORIES-KITSAP, LLC

WATER NON INVENTORY PARTS 425.81CHK125097 06/10/2024 USA USA BLUEBOOK

MONTHLY ELECTRIC LOCATES 455.63CHK125098 06/10/2024 UTILI1 UTILITIES UNDERGROUND LOCATION

VEHICLE #62-WIPER BLADE 23.98CHK125099 06/10/2024 NAPA AUTO PA WESTBAY NAPA AUTO PARTS

DUCTLESS HEATPUMP REBATE 800.00CHK125100 06/10/2024 2 DAVID K ROSE

SHOP SUPPLIES 542.82CHK125101 06/10/2024 HOOD CANAL HOOD CANAL MARKET FRESH

10%-BALANCE OF TRANSFORMER 146,233.20CHK125102 06/10/2024 PROLEC-GE PROLEC-GE WAUKESHA, INC

ELECTRIC INVENTORY PARTS-#2 TRIPLEX 7,144.73CHK125103 06/14/2024 ANIXTER ANIXTER INC

SHOP-RE-CONNECT DOOR CONTROLS TO HEATERS 586.78CHK125104 06/14/2024 BRIGHT KNIGHT BRIGHT KNIGHTS LLC

SHOP STOCK-FORD FUEL FILTERS 305.09CHK125105 06/14/2024 BRUCE TITUS F BRUCE TITUS FORD

EQUIPMENT #114 & SHOP 10.51CHK125106 06/14/2024 CAPIT2 CAPITAL INDUSTRIAL, INC.

TELEPHONE CHARGES ACCT#206-Z05-0016 020 1,094.31CHK125107 06/14/2024 CENTUR CENTURYLINK

LONG DISTANCE & OUTBOUND CHARGES 78.36CHK125108 06/14/2024 CENTURYLINK CENTURYLINK

GAS & DIESEL 3,732.88CHK125109 06/14/2024 DON SMALL & S DON SMALL & SONS OIL DIST

ELECTRIC INVENTORY-500MCM WIRE 237,750.00CHK125110 06/14/2024 DPWIRE DP WIRE & CABLE LLC

2024 MARKETING FEES 500.00CHK125111 06/14/2024 EDC ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

MONTHLY REIMBURSEMENT-#51058600 1,548.81CHK125112 06/14/2024 FERRIER JANIECE  FERRIER

(10)25KVA PDMT TRANSFORMERS 34,709.15CHK125113 06/14/2024 GENPAC GENERAL PACIFIC INC

SHOP-TOOLS 112.79CHK125114 06/14/2024 GMES LLC GMES LLC

RIPPLEWOOD WATER 81,335.48CHK125115 06/14/2024 HANSON EXCAV HANSON EXCAVATION LLC

WATER NON INVENTORY SUPPLIES 111.32CHK125116 06/14/2024 L.G. L. G. ISAACSON CO. INC.

WPAG MONTHLY FEES 392.99CHK125117 06/14/2024 MARSH MARSH MUNDORF PRATT & SUL

TRAVEL EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT 576.40CHK125118 06/14/2024 MASTELLER KRISTIN  MASTELLER

VUECREST RESERVOIR & BOOSTER STATION 455.00CHK125119 06/14/2024 MTC MATERIALS TESTING & CONSULTING, I

PRINT SERVICES 14,400.71CHK125120 06/14/2024 NISC NISC

LINEWORKER SKILLS SERIES-LINEWORK RIGGIN 5,979.84CHK125121 06/14/2024 NWPPA NWPPA

/pro/rpttemplate/acct/2.59.1/ap/AP_CHK_REGISTER.xml.rpt51217



Page 306/17/2024 4:05:27 PM

Rev: 202303040906

Accounts Payable
Check Register

MASON COUNTY PUD NO 1

06/10/2024 To 06/17/2024
Bank Account:   4 - UMPQUA BANK - DISTRICT

Check /
Tran Date

Pmt
Type AmountVendor NameVendor Reference

EQUIPMENT #114 & SPARE TIRE 964.74CHK125122 06/14/2024 POMP'S POMP'S TIRE SERVICE INC

MONTHLY RETAINER FEE 8,750.00CHK125123 06/14/2024 JOHN 3 ROBERT W. JOHNSON

ENERGY COMPLIANCE ATTESTATION 3,088.00CHK125124 06/14/2024 STATE STATE AUDITOR'S OFFICE

PROPANE 58.50CHK125125 06/14/2024 TOZIER TOZIER BROS, INC

STENNER PUMP-LAKE ARROWHEAD WATER 776.21CHK125126 06/14/2024 USA USA BLUEBOOK

SHOP-SPARE SPRING BRAKES 273.12CHK125127 06/14/2024 NAPA AUTO PA WESTBAY NAPA AUTO PARTS

UNION DUES 1,117.54CHK125128 06/17/2024 IBEW IBEW LOCAL UNION #77

EMPLOYEE FUND 210.00CHK125129 06/17/2024 PUDEMP PUD #1 EMPLOYEE FUND

Total Payments for Bank Account - 4 : (59) 1,222,427.60
Total Voids for Bank Account - 4 : (1) 80.00

Total for Bank Account - 4 : (60) 1,222,507.60

Grand Total for Payments : (59) 1,222,427.60
Grand Total for Voids : (1) 80.00

Grand Total : 1,222,507.60(60)

/pro/rpttemplate/acct/2.59.1/ap/AP_CHK_REGISTER.xml.rpt51217



Page 406/17/2024 4:05:27 PM

Rev: 202303040906

Accounts Payable
Check Register

MASON COUNTY PUD NO 1

PARAMETERS  ENTERED:

Check Date: 06/10/2024 To 06/17/2024
Bank: All

Vendor: All
Check:

Journal: All
Format: Summary

Extended Reference: No
Check/TransactionSort By:

Voids: Current
AllPayment Type:
NoGroup By Payment Type:

Minimum Amount: 0.00
Authorization Listing: No
Credit Card Charges: No

/pro/rpttemplate/acct/2.59.1/ap/AP_CHK_REGISTER.xml.rpt51217



                             PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 1 BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS           
                                               OF MASON COUNTY                              MIKE SHEETZ, Commissioner 

                           N. 21971 Hwy. 101                    JACK JANDA, Commissioner          
                      Shelton, Washington 98584                          RON GOLD, Commissioner 

 

(360) 877-5249     (800) 544-4223  FAX (360) 877-9274 
www.mason-pud1.org 

 
PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACT 

 
CHANGE ORDER FORM 

 
NO.  04   

 
 

The following changes are hereby incorporated into this Contract: 
 

A. Description of Change: 
Additional Saw cutting, additional asphalt removal, additional export and import for trench crossings. 
Additional pipe and labor for longer crossings for water services, per change in design. 
 

B. Contract Price Adjustment: 
 

As a result of this Change Order, the total Contract shall be increased/decreased by the sum of  
$ 31,079.83 , plus sales tax, which the amount Contractor acknowledges is full and complete 
compensation for the Contract Work including changes incorporated by this Change Order. 
 
This Change Order shall not provide any basis for any other payments to or claims by the Contractor as a 
result of or arising out of the performance of the work described herein. The new total revised Contract 
Price is $ 514,249.87   , including sales tax. 

 
 

C. Time of Completion:  
 

The time of completion shall be increased/decreased by  0  calendar days. The revised completion 
date shall be   n/a .  

 
D. Except as specifically provided herein, all other Contract terms and conditions shall remain unchanged. 

 
 

CONTRACTOR      PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 1 OF MASON COUNTY 
 

Company:   Hanson Excavation LLC    

Accepted by:  Jared Hanson     Accepted by:       

Title:   Owner     Title:       

Date:   06/21/2024    Date:       

 



Hanson Excavation LLC
86 SE Banjo LN
Shelton, WA  98584
(360)239-6792
jared@hansonex.com

Estimate

ADDRESS

Mason County PUD #1
21971 US-101
Shelton, WA  98584

ESTIMATE # DATE

1450 05/06/2024

ACTIVITY QTY RATE AMOUNT

Change Order
Additional Saw cutting, additional asphalt removal, additional export 
and import for trench crossings. additional pipe and labor for longer 
crossings for water services

1 28,645.00 28,645.00T

SUBTOTAL 28,645.00

TAX 2,434.83
TOTAL $31,079.83

Accepted By Accepted Date



                         PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 1   BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS                                                          OF MASON COUNTY            MIKE SHEETZ, Commissioner                            N. 21971 Hwy. 101                  JACK JANDA, Commissioner                                Shelton, Washington 98584                       RON GOLD, Commissioner 
 

   Page | 1 of 3 
 

 

Contract No. E-062424 

               Date June 24, 2024
  

 
 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 

SERVICE CONTRACT 
For Breaker Foundation at t3ba’das 

 
THIS CONTRACT made and entered into this 24th day of June 2024, shall be the agreed basis of performing 
the following work by and between Public Utility District No. 1 of Mason County, referred to as the Owner, 
and DJ’s Electrical, Inc., hereinafter referred to as the Contractor. 
 
WITNESSETH:  Whereas the parties hereto have mutually covenanted and by these presents do covenant and 
agree with each other as follows: 
 
FIRST:  The said Contractor agrees to furnish material, labor, tools, equipment, apparatus, facilities, etc., 
necessary to perform and complete in a workmanship like manner the work called for in the contract 
documents entitled: 
Project No. E-062424 
Form, pour and finish the breaker foundation slab. Make ground connections in the slab to ground grid, install 
(2) 2” conduit sweeps. 
 
according to the terms of the contract documents shall include, if applicable, Request for Bids form, Instruction 
to Bidders, General Conditions, Supplemental Conditions, Bid Proposal, Technical Specifications, Drawings, 
and Exhibits, and all modifications incorporated in the documents and this Contract.  Contractor agrees to 
abide by all applicable laws, rules and regulations related to the project including, but not limited to, prevailing 
wage, district insurance requirements, retainage requirements, and licensing requirements. The Contractor shall 
maintain during the life of this contract such Commercial General Liability Insurance, and automobile 
insurance as shall protect against claims for damages resulting from (1) bodily injury, including wrongful death 
and (2) property damage including loss of use thereof, which may arise from or in consequence of the 
operations under this contract whether such operations be by the Contractor, any subcontractor or anyone 
directly or indirectly employed by either of them, with minimum policy limits of one million dollars 
($1,000,000.00) combined single limits and a provision that PUD 1 will be named an additional insured. 
 
SECOND:  The Contractor shall release, defend and hold harmless PUD 1 entirely without cost to PUD 1 and 
pay and/or satisfy any and all judgments and decrees which may be rendered against the utility or any of its 
officers and/or agents, together with any interest thereon and all the court costs for any actions of contractor's 
subcontractor or the Contractor or the subcontractor's agents, for any death, injury or damages to persons or 



                         PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 1   BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS                                                          OF MASON COUNTY            MIKE SHEETZ, Commissioner                            N. 21971 Hwy. 101                  JACK JANDA, Commissioner                                Shelton, Washington 98584                       RON GOLD, Commissioner 
 

   Page | 2 of 3 
 

property caused by the negligence or alleged negligence of the Contractor or the Contractor's subcontractors, or 
the Contractor or the subcontractor's employees or agents, and shall protect, indemnify, and keep and save  
harmless to PUD 1 and to its commissioners, officers, employees, agents, or authorized representatives for and 
from all suits, cost, damages, expense, judgments or decrees whatever arising out of such action or suits as may 
be brought as aforesaid. 
 
THIRD:  The Contractor is an independent Contractor and in the performance of work under this agreement 
shall pay all taxes, assessments or payments of every kind required by the State of Washington, or any 
subdivision, or agency thereof, and shall pay all assessments or payments required by the Federal Government 
or any agency thereof, in connection with the performance of this agreement and shall further carry Workmen's 
Compensation on all employees. 
 
FOURTH:  Time for Completion:  The work to be performed under this contract shall commence as soon as 
the Contractor has been officially notified to proceed and shall be completed within _  14__ consecutive days 
after the date of notice to proceed, or no later than July, 1 2024 
 
FIFTH:  In consideration of the Performance of the work, herein contained on the part of the Contractor, the 
Owner hereby agrees to pay the Contractor for said work completed according to the Contract Documents, the 
sum of $4,000, Sales Tax excluded, and consisting of the following: 
 
 BASE BID $28,000 
 SALES TAX $2,380 
 TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT $30,380 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF:  The Owner, has caused this Contract to be subscribed in its behalf, and the said 
Contractor has signed this Contract the day and year first above written. 
 
Contractor: Owner: 
 
  Public Utility District No. 1 of Mason County 
 
By   By   
 
Title   Title    
 
Date   Date   
 
Washington State Contractor’s 
License No.     
 
 
 
 
 



                         PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 1   BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS                                                          OF MASON COUNTY            MIKE SHEETZ, Commissioner                            N. 21971 Hwy. 101                  JACK JANDA, Commissioner                                Shelton, Washington 98584                       RON GOLD, Commissioner 
 

   Page | 3 of 3 
 

 
CONTRACTOR'S OPTION:  Payment and Performance Bond Waiver 
 
It is hereby requested that the payment and performance bond requirement be waived for the subject contract, 
and 50% of the amount of the contract withheld for a period of forty-five (45) days after the date of final 
acceptance, and/or until receipt of all necessary releases from the Department of Labor and Industries, and 
Department of Employment Security, and settlement of any liens filed under Chapter 60.28. RCW, whichever 
is latest, as set forth in RCW 39.08. 
 
Contractor    
 
Signature     
 
Name/Title     
 
Date     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Public Utility District No. 1 (District) is a Washington municipal corporation, a government entity that is subject to the 
requirements of the Washington Public Records Act, Chapter 42.56 of the Revised Code of Washington (the “Act”).  
District agrees that upon receiving any request pursuant to the Act for public access to or disclosure of information 
associated with Bidder’s financial information or any other confidential information defined by Bidder as confidential in 
District’s possession or control, District will notify Bidder of such request and provide at least 5 days written notice of 
such request prior to public disclosure of the documents.  Bidder may take such efforts to assert or exercise any rights 
available to Bidder under the Act to prevent or limit such public disclosure or access at Bidder’s sole and exclusive 
expense.   



AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
OWNER AND CONTRACTOR 

 
The Effective Date of this Contract is:  June 13, 2024 

The Parties to this Contract are:  

The “Owner” Mason County Public Utility District No. 1 
The “Contractor”   Hanson Excavation, LLC 

Project Name:   Hill Way Site Restoration 

The “Architect” or “Engineer:”   Owner 

The “Work:” See “Scope of Work,” Exhibit  A 
Alternates included in the Contract Sum:   N/A 

Contract Sum for the Work: 
(not including sales tax) 

$ 58,900.27 

Payments: 
(check one) 

□ The Owner will make monthly progress payments. 
□ The Owner will make a lump sum payment after 
completion. 
□ See Supplemental Conditions 

Date of Substantial Completion of the Work:   July 26, 2024 

Date of Final Completion of the Work:   5    days after Substantial Completion  
Liquidated Damages: $100 per day for each calendar day beyond the Contract 

Time that Substantial Completion is not achieved. 
Owner’s Permit Responsibilities:   All applicable permits 

Unit Prices:   N/A 

Minimum Required Insurance:  

Commercial General Liability: At least $1 million per occurrence and general aggregate. 
Automobile Liability: At least $1 million 
Workers’ Compensation 
(industrial insurance): 

At least the State statutory amount 

Employer’s Liability: At least $1 million 
Aircraft Liability: N/A 
Watercraft Liability: N/A 
Property Insurance: Full insurable value 
Boiler and Machinery Insurance:   N/A 

Additional Insureds: Mason County PUD No. 1 
 

The Owner and Contractor agree as set forth below. 
 

ARTICLE 1: THE WORK. The Contractor shall fully execute and complete the entire Work described in 
the Contract Documents, including the Alternates listed above. 



_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Agreement between Owner and Contractor Page 1 

ARTICLE 2: COMMENCEMENT AND SUBSTANTIAL AND FINAL COMPLETION. 
2.1 The date of commencement of the Work is the date of this Agreement. The Contract Time is measured 
from the date of commencement to the date of Substantial Completion specified above, as it may be adjusted 
under the Contract Documents. 

 
2.2 The Contractor shall achieve Substantial Completion and Final Completion of the entire Work within 
the dates specified above, subject to adjustments of the Contract Time as provided in the Contract 
Documents. 

 
ARTICLE 3: THE CONTRACT SUM. The Owner shall pay the Contractor the Contract Sum for the 
Contractor’s performance of this Contract, subject to additions and deductions as provided in the Contract 
Documents. Sales tax is not included in the Contract Sum. 

 
ARTICLE 4: PAYMENT. The Owner will pay the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of an 
approved Application for Payment in accordance with this Contract. Retainage will be released in 
accordance with statutory requirements. 

 
ARTICLE 5: PERMITS AND FEES. 
5.1 The Owner will secure and pay for only those governmental permits, approvals, fees, licenses, 
inspections, governmental charges and inspection fees listed on the cover page. 

 
5.2 The Contractor shall secure and pay for all other governmental permits, approvals, fees, licenses, 
inspections, governmental charges and inspection fees required for the prosecution of the Work. 

 
ARTICLE 6: ENUMERATION OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. 
6.1 The Contract Documents form this Contract. This Contract represents the entire and integrated 
agreement between the parties and supersedes prior negotiations, representations or agreements, either 
written or oral. The Contract Documents shall not be construed to create a contractual relationship of 
any kind between the Owner and a Subcontractor of any tier, between any Architect and the 
Contractor, or between any persons or entities other than the Owner and the Contractor. 

 
6.2 The Contract Documents are enumerated as follows and, in the event of a conflict or discrepancy 
among or in the Contract Documents, interpretation shall be governed in the following order of priority: 

 
1. Agreement  
2. Prevailing wage rates set by L&I as of the bid date for Mason County (available at 

http://www.lni.wa.gov/TradesLicensing/PrevWage/WageRates/default.asp) 
3. General Conditions 
4. Scope of Work (See Exhibit A) 
5. Drawings and Specifications (Refer to Bid Package) 

 
OWNER CONTRACTOR 

 
By    By    

(Signature) (Signature) 
 

(Printed name and title) (Printed name and title) 
Jared Hanson (Owner)

http://www.lni.wa.gov/TradesLicensing/PrevWage/WageRates/default.asp




_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
General Conditions  GC-1 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 
ARTICLE 7 

THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 
 
7.1 The intent of the Contract Documents is to include all items necessary for the proper execution and completion of the Work 
by the Contractor. The Contractor’s performance shall be consistent with the Contract Documents and reasonably inferable from 
them as being necessary to produce the intended results. 
 
7.2 “Work” means the construction and services required by the Contract Documents and includes all labor, materials, equipment 
and services to be provided by the Contractor to fulfill its obligations. 
 
7.3 If the Contractor finds a conflict, error or discrepancy in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall report it to the Owner 
in writing at once. The Contractor shall not proceed with the affected Work until it receives a written interpretation or clarification from 
the Owner. 
 

ARTICLE 8 
ADMINISTRATION OF THE CONTRACT 

 
8.1 The Owner will provide administration of the Contract. If an Architect or Engineer is also involved, its duties beyond those 
addressed in these General Conditions will be described in an attachment to this Contract. 
 
8.2 Authority. The Owner must approve in writing all changes in the Contract Sum or Contract Time as well as all Change 
Orders, Construction Change Directives, and payments to the Contractor. The Owner will make any modification or release of any 
requirement of the Contract Documents, or any approval or acceptance of any portion of the Work, whether or not executed in accordance 
with the Contract Documents, exclusively in writing. 
 
8.3 Rejection of Work. The Owner may reject Work that, in its opinion, does not conform to the Contract Documents. If the 
Contractor fails to correct Work that is not in accordance with the Contract Documents or fails to carry out the Work in accordance with 
the Contract Documents, the Owner may order the Contractor in writing to stop the Work, or any portion thereof, until the cause for that 
order has been eliminated; however, the right of the Owner to stop the Work shall not give rise to a duty on the part of the Owner to 
exercise this right. 
 
8.4 Site Access. The Owner shall have access to and may visit the Work site at intervals it considers appropriate to the stage of 
the Work to become generally familiar with the progress and quality of the completed Work, but the Owner will not be required to make 
exhaustive or continuous on-site inspections to check the quality or quantity of the Work. 
 
8.5 Submittals. The Contractor shall review, approve and submit to the Owner with reasonable promptness shop drawings, 
product data, samples and similar submittals required by the Contract Documents. The Owner will review and approve or take other 
appropriate action upon the Contractor’s submittals for the limited purpose of checking for conformance with information given and 
the design concept expressed by the Contract Documents. The Work shall be in accordance with approved submittals. The Owner’s 
review and approval does not relieve the Contractor of responsibility for compliance with the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall 
submit to the Owner any proposed change to or deviation from previously approved documents or submittals. 
 

ARTICLE 9 
THE CONTRACTOR 

 
9.1 Using its best skill and attention, the Contractor shall perform, supervise and direct the Work. The Contractor shall be 
solely responsible for and have control over construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, procedures and personnel, for 
safety, and for coordinating all portions of the Work under this Contract. The Contractor shall provide and pay for all labor, materials, 
equipment, tools and machinery, water, heat, utilities, transportation, and other facilities and services necessary for the proper 
execution and completion of the Work, whether temporary or permanent and whether or not incorporated or to be incorporated in the 
Work. 
 
9.2 Subcontractors. A “Subcontractor” is a person or entity that has a direct contract with the Contractor to perform a portion 
of the Work at the site or to supply materials or equipment. A “Subcontractor of any tier” includes Subcontractors and lower-level 
subcontractors and suppliers. 
 

9.2.1 Identification. As soon as practicable and no later than fourteen (14) days after award of this Contract, the 
Contractor shall confirm to the Owner in writing the names of the Subcontractors for each portion of the Work. 
 

9.2.2 Subcontracts. Contracts between the Contractor and Subcontractors shall require each Subcontractor to be bound to 
the Contractor by the terms of the Contract Documents for the Work to be performed by the Subcontractor and to assume toward 
the Contractor all the obligations and responsibilities that the Contractor, by the Contract Documents, assumes toward the Owner. 
 



_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
General Conditions  GC-2 

9.2.3 Payment. The Contractor shall promptly pay (and secure the discharge of any liens asserted by) all persons properly 
furnishing labor, equipment, materials or other items in connection with the performance of the Work for which the Owner has paid 
(including, but not limited to, workers and Subcontractors). The Contractor shall furnish to the Owner releases of liens and claims 
and other documents that the Owner requests from time to time to evidence such payment (and discharge). Nothing in the Contract 
Documents shall obligate the Owner to pay or to cause the payment of any moneys due to any Subcontractor of any tier or other person 
or entity, except as may otherwise be required by law or regulation. 

 
9.3 Workers. The Contractor shall enforce strict discipline and good order among persons carrying out the Work and shall not 
permit employment of unfit persons or persons not skilled in tasks assigned to them. At no change to the Contract Sum or Contract 
Time, the Owner may provide written notice requiring the Contractor to remove from the Work any employee or other person carrying 
out the Work that the Owner considers objectionable. 
 
9.4 Warranty. The Contractor warrants that materials and equipment furnished under this Contract will be of good quality and 
new, that the Work will be performed in a workmanlike manner, free from defects not inherent in the quality required, and that the Work 
will conform with the requirements of the Contract Documents. 
 
9.5 Progress Schedule. Within fourteen (14) days of execution of this Contract, the Contractor shall submit a schedule of the 
Work to the Owner (“Progress Schedule”). The Contractor will be responsible for planning, scheduling, managing, and reporting the 
progress of the Work in accordance with all of the specific methods and submittals described in the Contract Documents. The 
Contractor shall use the Progress Schedule (as updated) to plan, coordinate, and prosecute the Work in an orderly and expeditious 
manner. 
 
9.6 Clean-Up. The Contractor shall keep the site and surrounding area free from accumulation of waste materials caused by 
operations under the Contract. 
 
9.7 Indemnification. 
 

9.7.1 Subject to the following conditions and to the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor shall defend, indemnify 
and hold harmless the Owner and its agents, employees, consultants, successors and assigns (together, the “Indemnified Parties”) from 
and against all claims, damages, losses and expenses, direct and indirect, or consequential, including but not limited to costs, 
attorneys’ fees, and other litigation expenses incurred on such claims and in proving the right to indemnification, arising out of or resulting 
from the performance of the Work by or any act or omission of the Contractor, its agents, any Subcontractor of any tier, and anyone 
directly or indirectly employed by them (together, the “Indemnitor”). 
 

.1 The Contractor will fully indemnify and defend the Indemnified Parties for the sole negligence of the Indemnitor. 
 

.2 The Contractor will indemnify and defend the Indemnified Parties for the concurrent negligence of the Indemnitor 
only to the extent of the Indemnitor’s negligence. The Contractor agrees to being added by the Owner as a party to any mediation, 
arbitration or litigation with third parties in which the Owner alleges indemnification or contribution from the Indemnitor. The 
Contractor agrees that all of its Subcontractors of any tier will similarly stipulate in their subcontracts. To the extent a court or arbitrator 
strikes any portion of this indemnification provision for any reason, all remaining provisions shall retain their vitality and effect. 
 

9.7.2 After mutual negotiation of the parties, the indemnification obligation shall not be limited by the amount or type 
of damages, compensation or benefits payable by or for the Contractor or a Subcontractor under workers’ compensation acts, 
disability benefit acts or other employee benefit acts in claims by an employee of the Contractor or a Subcontractor of any tier against 
any person or entity indemnified under this Paragraph 9.7. For the sole purpose of effecting the indemnification obligations under this 
Contract and not for the benefit of any third parties unrelated to the Owner, the Contractor specifically and expressly waives any 
immunity that may be granted it under Title 51 RCW, "Industrial Insurance." IF THE CONTRACTOR DOES NOT AGREE WITH 
THIS WAIVER, IT MUST PROVIDE A WRITTEN NOTICE TO THE OWNER PRIOR TO THE DATE FOR THE RECEIPT OF 
BIDS, OR THE CONTRACTOR WILL BE DEEMED TO HAVE NEGOTIATED AND WAIVED THIS IMMUNITY. 
 
9.8 Records. The Contractor shall maintain and preserve books, ledgers, records, estimates, correspondence, logs, schedules, 
electronic data and other documents relating or pertaining to the costs and/or performance of the Contract (“records”). Within seven 
(7) days of the Owner’s request, the Contractor shall make available at the Contractor’s office all records for inspection, audit and 
reproduction (including electronic reproduction) by the Owner’s representatives. These requirements apply to each Subcontractor of 
any tier. The Contractor agrees, on behalf of itself and Subcontractors of any tier, that the invocation of any rights under RCW 
42.56 shall initiate an equivalent right to disclosures from the Contractor and Subcontractors of any tier for the benefit of the Owner. 
 
9.9 Compliance with Law. The Contractor, its employees, Subcontractors of any tier and representatives, shall comply with 
all applicable laws, ordinances, statutes, rules and regulations, federal and state, county and municipal. 
 

9.9.1 Prevailing Wages. The Contractor shall comply with all applicable provisions of RCW 39.12, including but not 
limited to submission of approved “Statements of Intent to Pay Prevailing Wage,” payment of all Labor & Industries’ fees, submission 
and posting of approved “Statements of Intent to Pay Prevailing Wages” and payment of prevailing wages. The State of Washington 
prevailing wage rates applicable for this public works project, which is located in Mason County, may be found at the following website 



_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
General Conditions  GC-3 

address of the L&I: http://www.lni.wa.gov/TradesLicensing/PrevWage/WageRates/default.asp. The Contractor shall keep a paper copy 
at the Project site. 
 

9.9.2 Hours of Labor. The Contractor shall comply with all applicable provisions of RCW 49.28. 
 

9.9.3 Worker’s Right to Know. The Contractor shall comply with RCW 49.70 and WAC 296-62-054 regarding workplace 
surveys and material safety data sheets for “hazardous” chemicals at the Project site. 

 
ARTICLE 10 

CONSTRUCTION BY THE OWNER OR BY SEPARATE CONTRACTORS 
 
10.1 The Owner may perform construction or operations related to the Project with its own forces and may award separate 
contracts in connection with other portions of the Project or other construction or operations on the site under contractual conditions 
consistent with those of the Contract Documents. 
 
10.2 The Contractor shall afford the Owner and separate contractors reasonable opportunity for the introduction and storage of 
their materials and equipment and performance of their activities, and shall connect and coordinate the Contractor’s construction and 
operations. 
 

ARTICLE 11 
CHANGES IN THE WORK 

 
11.1 The Owner, without invalidating this Contract, may order changes in the Work consisting of additions, deletions or 
modifications (“Changes”), and the Contract Sum and Contract Time will be adjusted accordingly. Changes in the Work, in the 
Contract Sum and/or in the Contract Time shall be authorized only by written Change Order signed by the Owner and the Contractor 
or by written Construction Change Directive signed by the Owner. 
 

11.1.1 Change Orders. A Change Order is a written instrument signed by the Owner and the Contractor stating their 
agreement upon a change in the Work, the amount of any adjustment in the Contract Sum, and the extent of any adjustment in the 
Contract Time. 

 
11.1.2 Construction Change Directives. A Construction Change Directive is a written order prepared and signed by the 

Owner that directs a change in the Work and states a proposed basis for any adjustment in the Contract Sum and/or Contract Time.  It 
is used in the absence of total agreement on the terms of a Change Order. The Contractor shall promptly proceed with the change in 
the Work described in the Construction Change Directive. As soon as possible, and within seven (7) days of receipt, the Contractor 
shall advise the Owner in writing of the Contractor’s agreement or disagreement with the cost or the method, if any, provided in the 
Construction Change Directive for determining the proposed adjustment in the Contract Sum or Contract Time. 
 
11.2 Costs of Changes and Claims. If the parties cannot agree on the cost or credit to the Owner from a Construction 
Change Directive or other Change in the Work, the Contractor and all affected Subcontractors of any tier shall keep and present an 
itemized accounting with supporting data. The total cost of any Change or Claim shall be limited to the reasonable value of the 
direct labor costs, material costs, construction equipment usage costs for the actual time equipment appropriate for the Work is 
used solely on the Change in the Work, the cost of any change in insurance, Subcontractor costs, and a fee for all combined overhead 
and profit, including impact costs of any kind, limited to twelve percent (12%) of the cost for any materials or work performed by 
the forces of the Contractor or a Subcontractor and eight percent (8%) of amounts due to Subcontractors. 
 
11.3 Claims for Concealed or Unknown Conditions. If conditions are encountered at the site that are (1) concealed physical 
conditions that differ materially from those indicated in the Contract Documents or (2) unknown physical conditions of an unusual 
nature that differ materially from those ordinarily found and generally recognized as inherent in activities of the character provided 
for in the Contract Documents, then the Contractor shall give written notice to the Owner promptly before conditions are disturbed 
and in no event later than seven (7) days after the first observance of the conditions. The Contractor shall make any Claim arising 
from such condition in accordance with the dispute resolution procedures of Article 19. 
 

ARTICLE 12 
TIME 

 
12.1 Delay. 
 

12.1.1 Time. If the Work is delayed by changes ordered in the Work, unanticipated general labor disputes, fire, unusual 
delay in deliveries, abnormal adverse weather conditions not reasonably anticipatable, unavoidable casualties or any other causes 
beyond the Contractor’s control, then the Contract Time shall be extended by Change Order to the extent the critical path is affected. 
 

12.1.2 Damages. The Contractor and Sub-contractors shall be entitled to damages for delay only where the Owner’s actions 
or inactions were the actual, substantial cause of the delay and where the Contractor could not have reasonably avoided the delay 
by the exercise of due diligence. 

http://www.lni.wa.gov/TradesLicensing/PrevWage/WageRates/default.asp


_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
General Conditions  GC-4 

 
12.1.3 Contractor Delay. If a delay was caused by the Contractor, a Subcontractor of any tier, or anyone acting on behalf 

of any of them, the Contractor is not entitled to an increase in the Contract Time or in the Contract Sum. 
 
12.2 Completion and Liquidated Damages. The timely completion of the Project is essential to the Owner. The Owner will 
incur serious and substantial damages if Substantial Completion of the Work does not occur within the Contract Time. The Contractor 
is responsible for actual damages for delay unless an amount is inserted on the cover page for liquidated damages, in which case the 
liquidated damage amount shall apply. Liquidated damages shall not be affected by partial completion, occupancy, or beneficial 
occupancy. 
 

ARTICLE 13 
PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION 

 
13.1 Payments. Payment shall be made as provided in this Contract, including any Supplemental Conditions. 
 
13.2 Withheld Payment. The Owner may withhold payment in whole or in part, or it may nullify the whole or part of a payment 
previously issued, on account of (1) defective Work not remedied, (2) claims or liens filed by third parties, (3) failure of the 
Contractor to make payments due to Subcontractors or for labor, materials or equipment, (4) damage to the Owner or another 
contractor, (5) reasonable evidence that the Work cannot be completed for the unpaid balance of the Contract Sum, (6) reasonable 
evidence that the unpaid balance would not be adequate to cover actual or liquidated damages for delay for which the Contractor is 
responsible, (7) failure to carry out the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents, or (8) liquidated damages. The Owner will 
provide the Contractor with written notice of its intent to implement this provision and provide details supporting the Owner’s intention. 
The Contractor will be afforded reasonable time following receipt of such notice to respond to or correct the circumstances provoking 
this action by the Owner. 
 
13.3 Substantial Completion. 
 

13.3.1 Substantial Completion is the stage in the progress of the Work when the construction is sufficiently complete, 
in accordance with the Contract Documents, so the Owner can fully utilize the Work (or a designated portion) for its intended use. All 
Work other than incidental corrective or punchlist work and final cleaning shall have been completed. The Work is not Substantially 
Complete if all systems and parts affected by the Work are not usable, any required occupancy or use permit has not been issued, or if 
utilities affected by the Work are not connected and operating normally. The fact that the Owner may use or occupy some or all of 
the Work does not indicate that the Work is Substantially Complete, nor does it toll or change any liquidated damages due the Owner. 

 
13.3.2 When the Contractor believes that the Work has achieved Substantial Completion, it shall notify the Owner in writing. 

When the Owner agrees, it will issue a Certificate of Substantial Completion. 
 
13.3.3 Immediately before any occupancy, the Owner will schedule an inspection tour of the area to be occupied. 

Representatives of the Owner and the Contractor will jointly tour the area and record items still remaining to be finished and/or 
corrected. The Contractor shall promptly supply and install any such items as well as items missed by the inspection but required 
or necessary for Final Completion as a part of the Contract Sum. 
 
13.4 Final Completion. After the Contractor has notified the Owner that the Work has been concluded, and the Contractor has 
submitted the items listed below as may be required at the discretion of the Owner, the Owner will determine in writing that Final 
Completion has occurred. 
 

.1 A final Application for Payment. 
 
.2 An affidavit that all payrolls, bills for materials and equipment, and other indebtedness connected with the Work 

for which the Owner or its property might in any way be responsible or encumbered, have been paid or otherwise satisfied. 
 

.3 Consent of surety to final payment. 
 

.4 A certificate evidencing that insurance required by the Contract Documents to remain in force after final payment 
is currently in effect and will not be cancelled or allowed to expire until at least thirty (30) days' prior written notice has been given to 
the Owner. 

.5 A written statement that the Contractor knows of no substantial reason why the insurance will not be renewable 
to cover the period required by the Contract Documents. 

 
.6 Other data establishing payment or satisfaction of or protection (satisfactory to the Owner) against all obligations, 

such as receipts, releases and waivers of liens and claims. 
 
.7 Pursuant to RCW 39.12.040, an "Affidavit of Wages Paid" from the Contractor and from each Subcontractor 

certified by the Industrial Statistician of the Department of Labor and Industries, with the fees paid by the Contractor or Subcontractor. 
 



_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
General Conditions  GC-5 

.8 A certified statement that the Contractor has closed all necessary permits or otherwise met the requirements of all 
governing jurisdictions related to this Project. 

 
.9 Pursuant to RCW 60.28.020, certificates from the Department of Revenue and the Department of Labor and 

Industries. 
 
.10 Pursuant to RCW 50.24, a certificate from the Department of Employment Security. 
 
.11 All deliverables required by the Contract Documents. 
 
.12 A certification that the materials in the Work are "lead-free" and "asbestos free." 
 
.13 A legible hard copy of the as-built drawings. 
 

13.5 Final Acceptance and Final Payment. 
 

13.5.1 Pursuant to RCW 60.28, completion of the contract Work shall occur after Final Completion has been achieved 
and the Owner has formally accepted the Project ("Final Acceptance"). Final Payment shall not become due until after Final 
Acceptance. 

 
13.5.2 If any Subcontractor of any tier refuses to furnish a release or waiver required by the Owner, the Owner may retain 

an amount to defray the cost of foreclosing the liens of such claims and to pay attorneys' fees, the total of which shall be no less than 
one hundred fifty percent (150%) of the claimed amount. If any such lien remains unsatisfied after all payments are made, the 
Contractor shall refund to the Owner all moneys that the latter may be compelled to pay in discharging such lien, including all costs 
and reasonable attorneys' fees. 

 
13.6 Waivers. 

 
13.6.1 Final Payment by the Owner. The making of final payment constitutes a waiver of claims by the Owner except 

those arising from (1) liens, claims, security interests, or encumbrances arising out of the Contract and unsettled; (2) failure of the 
Work to comply with the requirements of the Contract Documents; (3) Work subsequently found to be substandard and/or deficient; 
or (4) terms of warranties required by the Contract Documents or law. 

 
13.6.2 Final Payment to the Contractor. Acceptance of final payment by the Contractor constitutes a waiver of Claims 

except those previously made in writing and specifically identified as unsettled on the final Application for Payment. 
 
13.6.3 Change Orders. The execution of a Change Order constitutes a waiver of Claims by the Contractor arising out of 

the Work to be performed or deleted pursuant to the Change Order, except as specifically described in the Change Order. 
 
13.6.4 Reservation of Rights. If the Contractor adds to a Change Order, a Construction Change Directive, or any other 

document a reservation of rights that has not been initialed by the Owner, any amounts previously agreed shall be considered 
disputed and not yet payable unless the costs are re-negotiated or the reservation is withdrawn or changed in a manner satisfactory to 
and initialed by the Owner. 

 
13.6.5 Failure to Exercise. The Owner’s failure to exercise any of its rights under this Contract shall not constitute a waiver 

of any past, present or future right or remedy. Any waiver by the Owner of any right or remedy under this Contract must be in writing 
and shall apply only to the right or remedy specified. 

 
13.7 Warranty of Title. The Contractor warrants and guarantees that title to the Work, materials and equipment covered by an 
Application for Payment, whether or not incorporated in the Project, will pass to the Owner no later than the time of payment, free and 
clear of liens. 
 

ARTICLE 14 
PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY 

 
14.1 The Contractor shall be solely responsible, and the Owner shall not have responsibility, for all aspects of safety related to this 
Contract or the Work, including initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions and programs in connection with the 
performance of the Contract. The Contractor shall take reasonable precautions for the safety of, and shall provide reasonable protection 
to prevent damage, injury or loss to, persons or property. 
 
14.2 The Contractor shall promptly remedy to the Owner’s satisfaction damage or loss to property at the site caused in whole or 
in part by the Contractor, a Subcontractor of any tier, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or by anyone for 
whose acts they may be liable, except for damage or loss attributable to acts or omissions of the Owner or by anyone for whose acts 
the Owner may be liable that are not attributable to the fault or negligence of the Contractor or a Subcontractor of any tier. 
 



_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
General Conditions  GC-6 

14.3 The Contractor shall not be required to perform without consent any Work relating to asbestos or polychlorinated biphenyl, 
unless identified as such in the Contract Documents. 
 

 
ARTICLE 15 

INSURANCE AND BONDS 
 
15.1 The Contractor shall, at its own cost, purchase from a company or companies authorized to do business in the State of 
Washington possessing a Best's policyholder's rating of A- or better and a financial rating of no less than VII, and reasonably acceptable 
to the Owner, and maintain during the life of this Contract, at least the following insurance. The Contractor shall also cause its 
Subcontractors of any tier to secure and maintain at least the following insurance. The insurance shall be in force at the time the Work 
is commenced and shall remain in force until Substantial Completion, unless a later date is specified below. 
 

15.1.1 Contractor's Liability Insurance. The Contractor shall purchase and maintain an occurrence-based Commercial 
General Liability Insurance Policy and such other insurance as will provide protection from claims set forth below which may arise out 
of or result from Contractor's operations under the Contract Documents, whether to be performed or furnished by Contractor, by any 
Subcontractor, by anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them to perform or furnish any of the Work, or by anyone 
for whose acts any of them may be liable: 
 

.1 Claims under workers' compensation, disability benefits and other similar employee benefit acts, as required by the 
laws of the state of Washington, including Contingent Employers Liability (Stop Gap) for all employees of the Contractor and 
Subcontractors; 

 
.2 If there is an exposure for injury to Contractor's or subcontractors' employees under the United States 

Longshoremen's and Harbor Workers' Compensation Act, the Jones Act or under laws, regulations or statutes applicable to maritime 
employees, or any similar laws, regulations or statutes, coverage shall be included for such injuries or claims. 

 
.3 Claims for damages because of bodily injury, occupational sickness or disease, or death of the Contractor's 

employees and of any person other than the Contractor’s employees; 
 
.4 Claims for damages insured by personal injury liability coverage that are sustained (a) by any person as a result 

of an offense directly or indirectly related to the employment of such person by Contractor, or (b) by any other person for any other 
reason. 

.5 Claims for damages, other than to the Work itself, because of injury to or destruction of tangible property wherever 
located, including loss of use resulting therefrom; 

 
.6 Claims arising out of operation of laws or regulations for damages because of bodily injury or death of any person 

or for damage to property; 
 
.7 Claims for damages because of bodily injury or death of any person or property damage arising out of the ownership, 

maintenance or use of any motor vehicle, including coverage for Owned Motor Vehicles, Non Owned Motor Vehicles and Hired or 
Borrowed Motor Vehicles; and 

 
.8 The comprehensive general liability insurance required by this paragraph must include contractual liability 

insurance applicable to Contractor's obligations under Paragraph 9.7. 
 
15.1.2 Property Insurance. Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall purchase and 

maintain property insurance upon the Work at the site to the full insurable value thereof (subject to any deductible amounts that may be 
provided in the Contract Documents). This insurance shall include the interest in the Work of the Owner, Contractor, Subcontractors 
of any tier, any Architect and consultants, all of whom shall be listed as insureds or primary, non-contributing additional insured 
parties. Additional insured status shall be evidenced by internal policy provision or by separate external endorsement. This insurance 
shall insure against the perils of fire and extended coverage and shall include "all risk" insurance for physical loss and damage including, 
without duplication of coverage, theft, vandalism and malicious mischief, collapse, false work and water damage, temporary buildings 
and debris removal (including demolition occasioned by enforcement of any applicable legal requirements), and such other perils as 
may be provided in the Contract Documents, and shall include damages, losses and expenses arising out of or resulting from any 
insured loss or incurred in the repair or replacement of any insured property (including but not limited to fees and charges of engineers, 
architects, attorneys and other professionals). If not covered under the "all risk" insurance or otherwise provided in the Contract 
Documents, the Contractor shall purchase and maintain similar property insurance on portions of the Work stored on and off the site 
or in transit when such portions of the Work are to be included in an Application for Payment. The Owner shall bear no responsibility 
for such portions of the Work or the consequences of their damage or loss. 

 
15.1.3 Boiler and Machinery Insurance. The Contractor shall purchase and maintain such boiler and machinery insurance 

for applicable equipment utilized or contained in the Work, which will include the interests in the Work of the Owner, Contractor, 
Subcontractors, any Architect, and consultants, all of whom shall be listed as insured or additional insured parties. 

 



_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
General Conditions  GC-7 

15.1.4 Aircraft/Watercraft Insurance. If the performance of the Work requires the use of any aircraft that are owned, leased, 
rented, or chartered by the Contractor or any of its Subcontractors, the Contractor shall secure and maintain Aircraft Liability 
Insurance for property damage and bodily injury, including passengers and crew. If the performance of the Work requires the use of 
any watercraft that are owned, leased, rented or chartered by the Contractor or any of its subcontractors, the Contractor shall secure 
and maintain Watercraft Liability insurance for property damage and bodily injury. 
 
15.3 The Owner's specification or approval of insurance in this Contract or of its amount shall not relieve, limit or decrease the 
liability of the Contractor under the Contract Documents or otherwise. Coverages are the minimum to be provided and are not 
limitations of liability under the Contract, indemnification, or applicable law provisions. The Contractor may, at its expense, purchase 
larger coverage amounts or additional insurance. 
 
15.4 Waiver of Rights 

15.4.1 The Owner and Contractor waive all rights against each other for losses and damages caused by any of the perils 
covered by the policies of insurance provided in response to Paragraphs 15.1.2 and 15.1.3 and any other property insurance applicable 
to the Work, and also waive such rights against the Subcontractors, Architect, consultants and other parties named as insureds in such 
policies for losses and damages so caused. Each subcontract between the Contractor and a Subcontractor will contain similar waiver 
provisions by the Subcontractor in favor of the Owner, Contractor, Architect, consultants and all other parties named as insureds. None 
of these waivers shall extend to the rights that any of the insured parties may have to the proceeds of insurance held by the Owner as 
Trustee or otherwise payable under any policy so issued. 
 

15.4.2 The Owner and Contractor intend that any policies provided in response to Paragraphs 15.1.2 and 15.1.3 shall 
protect the parties insured and provide primary coverage for losses and damages caused by the perils covered thereby. Accordingly, 
such policies shall contain provisions to the effect that in the event of payment of any loss or damage the insurer will have no rights of 
recovery against any of the parties named as insureds or additional insureds, and if the insurers require separate waiver forms to be 
signed by the Architect or its consultant, the Owner will obtain the same, and if such waiver forms are required of any Subcontractor, 
the Contractor will obtain the same. 

 
15.5 Any insured loss under the policies of insurance required by Paragraphs 15.1.2 and 15.1.3 will be adjusted with the Owner 
and made payable to the Owner as Trustee for the insureds, as their interests may appear, subject to the requirements of any applicable 
mortgage clause. The Owner shall deposit in a separate account any money so received, and shall distribute it in accordance with 
such agreement as the parties in interest may reach. If no agreement is reached, the damaged Work shall be repaired or replaced, the 
moneys so received applied on account thereof, and the Work and the cost thereof covered by an appropriate Contract Modification or 
Written Amendment, or be a separate contract, at the Owner's option. 
 
15.6 Endorsements. 
 

15.6.1 The Owner, its officer and employees shall be named as a primary, non-contributing additional insured and 
coverage shall apply on a primary and non-contributory basis on such policies other than Workers’ Compensation. Additional 
insured status shall be evidenced by internal policy provision or by separate external endorsement. Policies shall contain a provision 
that the Owner shall be given thirty (30) days' written notice by certified mail before cancellation of any insurance or reduction of the 
amount thereof, or any alteration, modification, restriction or material change thereto. No such cancellation, reduction, alteration, 
modification, restriction or material change in any policy shall relieve the Contractor of its obligation to maintain coverages in 
accordance with the Contract Documents. 
 

15.6.2 All insurance policies to be maintained by the Contractor shall provide for Waiver of Subrogation in favor of the 
Owner. 

 
15.6.3 All insurance policies, except Workers' Compensation, to be maintained by the Contractor shall provide Severability 

of Interests or Cross Liability Clause and provide that the insurance shall be primary and not excess to or contributing with any 
insurance or self-insurance maintained by the Owner. 

 
15.7 Certificates evidencing that satisfactory coverage of the type and limits set forth in the Contract Documents shall be 
furnished to the Owner in a form acceptable to the Owner and shall contain provisions consistent with Paragraph 15.6. 

 
15.8 Irrespective of the requirements of the Contract Documents as to insurance to be carried by the Contractor, insolvency, 
bankruptcy or failure of any insurance company to pay all claims accruing, shall not be held to relieve the Contractor of any of its 
obligations. 

 
15.9 The Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold the Owner harmless from any failure of the Contractor or its Subcontractors 
of any tier to secure and maintain insurance as required by this Contract. 
 

ARTICLE 16 
CORRECTION OF WORK 

 
16.1 The Contractor shall promptly correct Work rejected or failing to conform to the requirements of the Contract Documents at 



_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
General Conditions  GC-8 

any time through a period of one (1) year from the date of Substantial Completion of this Contract or by terms of a longer 
manufacturer’s warranty or an applicable special warranty required by the Contract Documents. 
 
16.2 If the Contractor fails to carry out or correct Work that is not in accordance with the Contract Documents, the Owner may, 
by written order, require the Contractor to stop the Work or any portions thereof until the cause for the order has been eliminated, 
and the Owner may take over and correct some or all of the non- conforming Work at the Contractor’s cost. 
 
16.3 Nothing in this Article shall be construed to establish a period of limitation with respect to other obligations that the 
Contractor might have under the Contract Documents. 
 

ARTICLE 17 
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

 
17.1 Applicable Law. This Contract shall be governed by the internal law of the State of Washington, without regard to its choice-
of-law provisions. 
 
17.2 Compliance with Law. The Contractor shall give notices and comply with applicable laws, rules, regulations and orders of 
public authorities, including but not limited to RCW 39.06 and RCW 18.27 (Registration), RCW 49.60 (Discrimination), RCW 70.92 
(Aged and Handicapped Persons), WAC 296-155 (Safety Standards), RCW 50.24 (Unemployment Compensation), RCW 51 
(Industrial Insurance); RCW 82 (State Excise Tax Registration), RCW 39.12.065(3) (prevailing wage violations), Drug-Free 
Workplace Act of 1988 (Drug-Free Workplace) and RCW 49.26 (any asbestos removal). 
 
17.3 Assignment. The Contractor shall not let, assign or transfer this Contract, or any interest in it or part of it, without the written 
consent of the Owner. 
 
17.4 The Owner’s Site Rules. The Contractor shall comply with the Owner’s site and conduct rules. 
 
17.5 Survival of Clauses. The warranty, dispute resolution, and indemnification provisions of this Contract shall survive the 
termination, cancellation or expiration of this Contract. 
 
17.6 Writing Required. No addition to or modification of this Contract or waiver of any provisions of this Contract shall be 
binding on either Party unless explicitly made in writing and executed by the Contractor and the Owner. 
 
17.7 Safety Standards. Contractor shall comply with require adequate safety systems for the trench excavation that meet the 
requirements of the Washington industrial safety and health act, chapter 49.17 RCW. The Contractor shall comply with pertinent 
provisions of Chapter 296-155 WAC, "Safety Standards for Construction Work," including without limitation trench safety 
requirements of RCW 39.04.180. 
 
 

ARTICLE 18 
TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT 

 
18.1 Termination for Cause by the Contractor. If the Owner fails to make payment of undisputed amounts for a period of 
sixty (60) days through no fault of the Contractor, the Contractor may, upon seven (7) additional days’ written notice (during which 
time the Owner has the right to cure), terminate the Contract and recover from the Owner payment for all Work executed in accordance 
with the Contract Documents. 
 
18.2 Termination for Cause by the Owner. The Owner may, upon seven (7) days’ written notice to the Contractor, terminate 
without prejudice the whole or any portion of the Work for cause, including but not limited to the Contractor’s material breach of this 
Contract; failure to prosecute the Work or any portion thereof with sufficient diligence to ensure the Substantial Completion of the 
Work within the Contract Time; failure to supply a sufficient number of properly skilled workers or proper materials; material 
disregard of laws, ordinances, rules, regulations or orders of any public authority having jurisdiction; or being adjudged bankrupt, 
making a general assignment for the benefit of its creditors, or having a receiver appointed on account of the Contractor’s insolvency. 
 
18.3 Termination for Convenience by the Owner. The Owner may, at any time upon seven (7) days' written notice to the 
Contractor, terminate (without prejudice to any right or remedy of the Owner) the whole or any portion of the Work for the convenience 
of the Owner. The Owner shall be liable to Contractor only for the amount reasonably incurred to date and due under Article 13 for 
the performance of the Work terminated and other pre-approved costs, consistent with the Paragraph 11.2, necessary and reasonably 
incurred in connection with the termination of the Work. 
 
18.4 Effects of Termination. 
 

18.4.1 The total sum to be paid to the Contractor under this Article 18 shall not exceed the Contract Sum as reduced by the 
amount of payments otherwise made. 
 



_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
General Conditions  GC-9 

18.4.2 Unless the Owner directs otherwise, after receipt of a notice of termination by the Owner, the Contractor shall 
promptly stop Work as specified in the notice of termination; place no further orders or subcontracts, except as necessary for 
completion of non-terminated Work; procure cancellation of all orders and subcontracts to the extent related to the performance of 
terminated Work; assign to the Owner all of the right, title and interest of the Contractor under all orders and subcontracts; with the 
Owner’s approval, settle outstanding liabilities and claims arising out of such termination of orders and subcontracts not assigned to 
the Owner; transfer title and deliver to the entity or entities designated by the Owner the fabricated or unfabricated parts, Work in 
process, partially completed supplies and equipment, materials, parts, tools, dies, jigs and other fixtures, completed Work, supplies 
and other material produced as part of, or acquired in connection with the performance of, the Work terminated, and the completed 
or partially completed plans, drawings, information and other property related to the Work; take such action as may be necessary or 
as directed by the Owner to preserve and protect the Work and property related to the Project in the possession of the Contractor in 
which the Owner has an interest; and continue performance only to the extent not terminated. 
 
18.5 Suspension. The Owner may, at its option and at any time, suspend the Contractor’s performance of some or all of the 
Work. The Owner will give the Contractor notice of any such suspension, including the scope of the suspension and the Owner’s 
estimate of the duration of such suspension.  During the period of suspension, the Contractor shall use its best efforts to minimize costs 
associated with such suspension and to protect and maintain the Work. As full compensation for any such suspension, the Contractor 
will be eligible for an equitable adjustment, which shall not include consequential or indirect damages. Upon receipt of the Owner’s 
notice to resume the suspended performance, the Contractor shall immediately resume performance to the extent required in the notice. 

 
 

ARTICLE 19 
DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

 
19.1 All claims, disputes and other matters in question of the Contractor, direct or indirect, arising out of, or relating to, the 
Contract Documents or the breach thereof ("Claims") shall be decided exclusively by the following dispute resolution procedure. 
Failure to comply with the requirements of this Article 19 shall constitute waiver of the Claim. 
 
19.2 Notice of Claim. The Contractor shall submit notice of all Claims to the Owner in writing within seven (7) days of the 
event giving rise to them and shall include a reasonable description of the event and its probable effect. 
 
19.3 Claim Submission. Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of submitting the notice in Paragraph 19.2, the Contractor 
shall provide the Owner with a written Claim that includes a clear description of the Claim, all changes in cost and in time (direct, 
indirect, impact, consequential, and otherwise) to which the Contractor and Subcontractors of any tier are entitled, and data 
supporting the Claim. No act, omission, or knowledge, actual or constructive, of the Owner or any Architect shall in any way be 
deemed to be a waiver of the requirement for a timely written notice and a timely written Claim unless the Owner and the Contractor 
sign an explicit, unequivocal written waiver. 
 
19.4 Effective Date. Unless otherwise specified in the Contract Documents, the effective date of any notice or request given 
in connection with this Contract shall be the date on which it is delivered to the Owner. 
 
19.5 Informal Resolution. The Owner will make a determination of the Claim submitted. If the Contractor disagrees with the 
determination and wishes to pursue the Claim further, the Contractor must, within fourteen (14) days of receipt of the determination, 
provide the Owner with a written request that a representative of the Contractor, any Architect, and the Owner meet, confer, and 
attempt to resolve the claim. This meeting will then take place at mutually convenient time and place within fourteen (14) days of the 
Contractor’s request. 
 
19.6 Mediation. The Contractor may not bring any litigation against the Owner unless the Claim is first subject to mediation 
under the Construction Industry Mediation Procedures of the American Arbitration Association (“AAA”). This requirement cannot be 
waived except by an explicit written waiver signed by the Owner and the Contractor. To initiate the mediation process, the 
Contractor shall submit a written mediation request to the Owner within thirty (30) days after the meeting undertaken in Paragraph 
19.5. If the parties are unable to agree to a mediator within thirty (30) days after the Owner's receipt of the written request for 
mediation, either party may submit a request for mediation to the AAA. An officer of the Contractor and the General Manager or 
designee of the Owner, both having full authority to settle the Claim, must attend the mediation session. To the extent there are other 
parties in interest, such as Subcontractors and insurers, their representatives, with full authority to settle the Claim, shall also attend 
the mediation session. All unresolved Claims in the Project shall be considered at a single mediation session that shall occur prior to 
Final Acceptance by Owner. 
 
19.7  Litigation. The provisions of Paragraphs 19.1, 19.2, 19.5, and 19.6 are each a condition precedent to the Contractor bringing 
litigation. All unresolved Claims of the Contractor shall be waived and released unless the Contractor has strictly complied with the 
time limits of the Contract Documents, and litigation is served and filed within 120 days after the Date of Substantial Completion as 
designated in writing by the Owner. This requirement cannot be waived except by an explicit written waiver signed by the Owner and 
the Contractor. The pendency of mediation shall toll this filing requirement. 
 
19.8 Maintenance of Responsibilities. The parties shall diligently carry on their respective obligations and responsibilities and 
maintain the Progress Schedule during any dispute resolution proceedings, unless otherwise agreed by both parties in writing. 



_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
General Conditions  GC-10 

 
19.9 Waiver. The requirements of this Article 19 cannot be waived except by an explicit written waiver signed by the Owner 
and the Contractor. The fact that the Owner and the Contractor may continue to discuss or negotiate a Claim that has or may have 
been defective or untimely under the Contract Documents shall not constitute waiver of the provisions of the Contract Documents 
unless the Owner and Contractor sign an explicit, unequivocal written waiver approved by the Owner's Board of Commissioners. 



 

_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
Supplemental Conditions SC-1 

Supplemental Conditions 
 

1. Payments will be in one lump sum, minus retained funds. The District may consider payments in increments of not less than twenty-
five percent (25%) of contracted amount. The Contracting Officer will be the final arbiter to set the percentage of work completed 
for release of any payments. 
 
1. Progress Payments. Progress payments shall be made monthly for Work that is duly approved and performed during 
the calendar month preceding the Application for Payment according to the following procedure. 
 

1.1 Schedule of Values. Prior to submitting its first Application for Payment, the Contractor shall submit to the Owner 
a schedule of values allocating the Contract Sum to the various portions that comprise the Work. The schedule of values shall 
be prepared in such form and supported by such data as the Owner may require. The schedule of values shall allocate at least 
three percent (3%) of the original Contract Sum to that portion of the Work between Substantial Completion of the Work and Final 
Completion, which will be earned upon Final Completion and distributed in the final payment. 

 
1.2 Draft Application. Within the first seven (7) days of each month, the Contractor shall submit to the Owner a report 

on the current status of the Work as compared to the Progress Schedule and a draft, itemized Application for Payment for 
Work performed through the prior calendar month. This shall not constitute a payment request. The Contractor, the Owner and the 
Architect or Engineer (if any) shall meet within the next seven (7) days and confer regarding the current progress of the Work and 
the amount of payment to which the Contractor is entitled. The Owner may request the Contractor to provide data substantiating the 
Contractor’s right to payment, such as copies of requisitions or invoices from Subcontractors. The Contractor shall not be entitled 
to make a payment request, nor is any payment due the Contractor, until such data is furnished. 

 
 1.3 Payment Request. Within seven (7) days after the Contractor and the Owner have met and conferred regarding 
the draft Application for Payment and the Contractor has furnished all data requested, the Contractor may submit a payment request 
in the agreed-upon amount, in the form of a notarized, itemized Application for Payment for Work performed during the 
prior calendar month on a form supplied or approved by the Owner. Among other things, the Application shall state that prevailing 
wages have been paid in accordance with the pre-filed statement(s) of intent to pay prevailing wages on file with the Owner and 
that all payments due Subcontractors from the Owner’s prior payments have been made. The Application shall constitute the 
Contractor’s representation that (1) all payments due Subcontractors from the Owner’s prior payments have been made and (2) the 
Work is current on the Progress Schedule, unless otherwise noted on the Application. If the Contractor believes it is entitled to 
payment for Work performed during the prior calendar month in addition to the agreed-upon amount, the Contractor may, within the 
same time period, submit to the Owner a separate written payment request specifying the exact additional amount due, the category 
in the schedule of values in which the payment is due, the specific Work for which the additional amount is due, and why the 
additional payment is due. 
 

1.4 Payments to Subcontractors. No payment request shall include amounts the Contractor does not intend to pay 
to a Subcontractor. If, after making a request for payment but before paying a Subcontractor for its performance covered by the 
payment request, the Contractor discovers that part or all of the payment otherwise due to the Subcontractor is subject to withholding 
from the Subcontractor for unsatisfactory performance, the Contractor may withhold the amount as allowed under the subcontract, 
but it shall give the Subcontractor and the Owner written notice of the remedial actions that must be taken as soon as practicable 
after determining the cause for the withholding but before the due date for the Subcontractor payment, and pay the Subcontractor 
within eight (8) working days after the Subcontractor satisfactorily completes the remedial action identified in the notice. 
 

1.5 Retainage. Pursuant to RCW 60.28, the Owner will reserve five percent (5%) from the moneys the 
Contractor earns on estimates during the progress of the Work, to be retained as a trust fund for the protection and payment of the 
claims of any person arising under this Contract and the state with respect to taxes imposed pursuant to Title 82 RCW, which may 
be due from the Contractor. The moneys reserved will be retained in a fund by the Owner until forty-five (45) days following 
formal acceptance of the Project by the Owner (“Final Acceptance”). The Contractor may retain payment of not more than five 
percent (5%) from the moneys earned by any Subcontractor. 
 

1.6 Upon completion of the Work, Contractor shall submit a Request for Final Payment, Certificate and Release form 
and itemized invoice to the Owner for approval and payment.





_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Scope of Work  SW-1 

 
Scope of Work- Exhibit A 

 
Per site visit/job walk through with water and electric superintendents: 

 
• Import all rock and necessary materials to remedy the community roadways, ditches, 

drainage areas, driveways and staging sites on N. Hill Way, N. Terrace Road, N. Sutton Road, 
N. Westward Way, and N. Arnolds Way in Hoodsport that were left unsuitable by the prior 
contractor. 

• Blade off gravel surface roadways and import and compact new gravel in areas that are 
bare dirt. 

• Patch the asphalt in the areas where the previous contractor cut across roadways and 
driveways. 

• Deliver material to and smooth out staging areas on both private and community 
properties used for staging areas and laydown yards. 

• Ensure drainage for the community roads system is unencumbered- clearing culverts and 
trenching in areas previous contractor left unremedied. Ensure drainage meets Mason 
County standards on the county-owned section of the road system. 

• Ensure new underground easement areas are cleaned up and restored to standard site 
conditions. 

• Ensure sides of roads are smoothed out and compacted for pedestrian traffic. 
• All work to be completed by July 26, 2024, and invoiced no later than August 2, 2024, so the 

PUD can close out its grant obligations and meet the deadline provided to the Star White 
community for restoration activities. 

• Please file any applicable certified payrolls, affidavits for prevailing wage and releases so we 
can issue payment and release retainage as soon as possible to close out the grant. 



ESTIMATE
Hanson Excavation LLC
86 SE Banjo LN
Shelton, WA 98584

jared@hansonex.com
(360)239-6792

Mason County PUD #1
Bill to

Mason County PUD #1
21971 US-101
Shelton, WA 98584

Ship to

Mason County PUD #1
21971 US-101
Shelton, WA 98584

Estimate details

Estimate no.: 1454
Estimate date: 06/13/2024

# Date Product or service Description Qty Rate Amount

1. Site restoration Road Grading/Compaction and repair
with Rock placement, Drainage
correction, and restoration work from
Utility work at hill way project. Includes all
areas shown on job preview.

1 $54,285.96 $54,285.96

Subtotal $54,285.96

Sales tax $4,614.31

Total $58,900.27

mailto:jared@hansonex.com
tel:(360)239-6792

	Agenda 06-25-2024
	Minutes 06-11-24 Regular Board Meeting
	Check Register
	51,217.00
	4.00
	
	
	000010496/17/24, 12:00:00 AMIRSWIRE
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	000010506/17/24, 12:00:00 AMWASH 1WIRE
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	000010516/17/24, 12:00:00 AMWASH 7WIRE
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	000010526/17/24, 12:00:00 AMHRAWIRE
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	000038726/14/24, 12:00:00 AMHDFOWLDD
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250756/10/24, 12:00:00 AM2M COMPANYCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250766/10/24, 12:00:00 AMALPINE DUCTLESSCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250776/10/24, 12:00:00 AMALTECCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250786/10/24, 12:00:00 AMAMERICOOLCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250796/10/24, 12:00:00 AMCRCCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250806/10/24, 12:00:00 AMDJ'S ELECTRICALCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250816/10/24, 12:00:00 AMDON SMALL & SONCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250826/10/24, 12:00:00 AMEXCELSIOR CLEANCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250836/10/24, 12:00:00 AMFEI 1539CHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250846/10/24, 12:00:00 AMGDS ASSOCIATESCHK
	Y
	Non-Hist
	



	001250856/10/24, 12:00:00 AMGILLIARDI LOGGCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250866/10/24, 12:00:00 AMGOLDSTREETCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250876/10/24, 12:00:00 AMH20 SOLUTIONSCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250886/10/24, 12:00:00 AMJENSEN PRECASTCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250896/10/24, 12:00:00 AML.G.CHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250906/10/24, 12:00:00 AMMASON CO GARBAGCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250916/10/24, 12:00:00 AMNWSSCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250926/10/24, 12:00:00 AMPITENY BOWESCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250936/10/24, 12:00:00 AMPLATT ELECTRICCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250946/10/24, 12:00:00 AMPOWER ENGINEERSCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250956/10/24, 12:00:00 AMRICOH USACHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250966/10/24, 12:00:00 AMSPECTRA LABCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250976/10/24, 12:00:00 AMUSACHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250986/10/24, 12:00:00 AMUTILI1CHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250996/10/24, 12:00:00 AMNAPA AUTO PARTSCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001251006/10/24, 12:00:00 AM2CHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001251016/10/24, 12:00:00 AMHOOD CANALCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001251026/10/24, 12:00:00 AMPROLEC-GECHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001251036/14/24, 12:00:00 AMANIXTERCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001251046/14/24, 12:00:00 AMBRIGHT KNIGHTSCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001251056/14/24, 12:00:00 AMBRUCE TITUS FORCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001251066/14/24, 12:00:00 AMCAPIT2CHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001251076/14/24, 12:00:00 AMCENTURCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001251086/14/24, 12:00:00 AMCENTURYLINKCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001251096/14/24, 12:00:00 AMDON SMALL & SONCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001251106/14/24, 12:00:00 AMDPWIRECHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001251116/14/24, 12:00:00 AMEDCCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001251126/14/24, 12:00:00 AMFERRIERCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001251136/14/24, 12:00:00 AMGENPACCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001251146/14/24, 12:00:00 AMGMES LLCCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001251156/14/24, 12:00:00 AMHANSON EXCAVATICHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001251166/14/24, 12:00:00 AML.G.CHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001251176/14/24, 12:00:00 AMMARSHCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001251186/14/24, 12:00:00 AMMASTELLERCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001251196/14/24, 12:00:00 AMMTCCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001251206/14/24, 12:00:00 AMNISCCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001251216/14/24, 12:00:00 AMNWPPACHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001251226/14/24, 12:00:00 AMPOMP'SCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001251236/14/24, 12:00:00 AMJOHN 3CHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001251246/14/24, 12:00:00 AMSTATECHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001251256/14/24, 12:00:00 AMTOZIERCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001251266/14/24, 12:00:00 AMUSACHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001251276/14/24, 12:00:00 AMNAPA AUTO PARTSCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001251286/17/24, 12:00:00 AMIBEWCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001251296/17/24, 12:00:00 AMPUDEMPCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	








	Change Order No. 4 - Ripplewood
	Change Order No. 4 - Ripplewood.pdf
	Ripplewood CO 4.pdf

	DJs t3 Breaker Foundation (2024)
	Hanson Excavation- Hill Way 2024 contract
	Hanson Excavation- Hill Way 2024.pdf
	Estimate_1454_from_Hanson_Excavation_LLC (002).pdf


